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B-3334 - B-3341 1840-1875/1920's 
1044-1000 Light St. (West side) 
Baltimore, Md. 
Private and semi-public access 

The west side of the 1000 block of Light St. has a number of quite interesting 
and unusual buildings. 1040-1044 Light St. is a typical group of three story, two 
and three bay wide brick buildings with shed roofs and bracketed cornices which has 
always served a mixed commercial/residential function and dates from the 1870's. 
At 1036-1038 Light St. there is the McHenry Theatre, an Art-Deco style brown brick 
strudture built in the 1920's to serve as one of three neighborhood movie houses, 
the other two of which are now gone. The original interior of the theatre is still 
intact, with community plans underway to reopen it as a movie theatre, but the 
old lobby area has been converted into two modern storefronts. At 1024 Light St. 
Public School #15 survives in its original Tuscan Revival form, two stories high, 
six bays wide with a low-pitched gable roof running perpendicular to Light St. with 
deeply projecting eaves supported by thin wooden brackets. The first floor area 
of the building has been converted into a modern storefront. Across Poultney St., 
to the north, at 1022 Light St. is a typical three story, three bay wide combination 
commercial/residential structure with shed roof and bracketed cornice dating from 
the early 1850's (it originally had a gable roof). At 1016-1020 Light St. there 
is a group of three story, two bay wide brick houses with gable roofs built in 
the early 1850's and currently used as both residences and storefronts. To the 
north, at 1008-1014 Light St., stands the large two and a half story, three bay 
wide, brick Queen Anne style Salvation Army Building, which was built as a Friends 
Meeting House in the 1870's. Finally, at 1000-1006 Light St. there is a row of 
two and a half story, late Federal style brick houses built about 1840 by John S. 
Gittings and others. All of the houses retain their original exterior form except 
for 1000 Light St. which has been enlarged and is now three stories in height with 
a shed roof and bracketed cornice. All of the first floor areas of this group 
of houses have been converted to modern storefronts. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

This three story brick building with Classical Revival facade and Art Deco 
interior originally served as a neighborhood movie theater. The first floor ara 
has recently been converted to a large modern commercial restaurant space but tte 
theater space itself is still intact. 

The building is three stories in height, about 35' wide (including a later 
three story addition to the south) and occupies a lot about 275' deep. Both buildings 
are constructed of brown brick laid both in common bond and in decorative brickwork 
patterns. The main theatre building has a shed roof with a Classical Revival parapet 
type cornice decorated with cut stonework. The cornice consists of a deeply projecting 
crown molding supported by a row of block modillions set above a row of egg and dart 
carvings, a row of dentils, and a row of leaf carvings. Beneath this projecting 
cornice there is a deep stone freize area with the name of the theatre carved in 
the stone and bordered at its lower edge by three stone molding strips. Above the 
projecting cornice a brick parapet is flanked on each side by a wide, paneled stone 
pier. A narrower paneled pier is located in the center of the parapet. A simple stone 
crown molding caps both the brick and stone portions of the parapet. 

The main decorative feature of the facade is a tall arched window which extends 
from the first floor level to the cornice and is framed in cut stonework. The round 
arch lintel of the window is supported by two paneled stone piers with stylized, 
Art Deco-influenced capitals. The arch itself is decorated with bas-relief circular 
stone carvings and has a carved central stone console. The window opening is now 
filled with modern smoked glass panels-- two upper curved panels set above 2/2 fixed 
lower panels. The addition to the theatre, located to the south, has a flat roof with 
cornice simply capped by a stone molding. The facade is articulated by two slightly 
projecting brick piers which run the full height of the facade and project above 
the roof line, and by two narrower brick piers with pointed stone capitals set in the 
center of the facade. In each of the three bays created by these piers there are 
square-shaped a brick accent motifs, composed of a rowsof headers set vertically 
and horizontally to form a square, the corners marked by dark, glazed bricks. These 
decorative squares are to be found above both rows of windows. The window openings 
have vertical stretcher lintels and header sills. All of the window openings 
are filled with 1/1 double hung sash. 

The first floor area of the facade has been remodeled and converted to a modern 
restaurant. The new facade consists of five brick piers supporting a wide aluminum 
sign area which extends across the entire width of the facade. The entrance is 
located in the southernmost bay, set perpendicular to the street. The other three 
bays are filled with modern plate glass windows supported on new brick bases. The 
entrance is reached directly from the street. 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

This building is quite important to the Federal Hill/South Baltimore 
neighborhood as it was one of the first community movie houses to open in the area 
and is the only one of three such theatres originally located in the blocks near 
the Cross St. Market to survive. The original Art Deco interior of the theatre 
remains intact and currently there is as active neighborhood project underway to 
restore the theatre to an operating movie house. This would be a non-profit venture 
designed to benefit the neighborhood, and hopefully will be funded by various grants, 
loans, and contributions from individuals and foundations. The "Ginos" restaurant 
located on the first floor of the building will remain and the entrance to the 
theatre will be from Poultney St. 
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The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created 
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the 
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 
19 74 Supplement. 
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McHenry Theatre 
1036-1038 Light Street 
Block 0935A Lots 004-005 
Baltimore City 
Baltimore East Quad. 





B-3335 1032-1034 Light St. 

M.E.H. 5/79 

East elevation 


